MINUTES
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
DECEMBER 18, 2002
A regular meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals was called to order on November 20 at 6:00 p.m. by Chairman
Ed Cooper. Robert Hiles and Eric Ireland were also present. Also present was David Betz, Director of
Development; Shawn Leininger, Development Planner, Dawn Nauman, Clerk to the Board, the applicants, and
other interested parties.

A COMPLETE TRANSCRIPT OF THIS HEARING MAY BE PURCHASED BY CONTACTING RUNFOLA
REPORTS AT 445-8477.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
The minutes of October 7, 2002 and November 20, 2002 were approved as printed.

VARIANCE
Applicant: David Krock
ADR & Associates

Location: 4212 Village Club Drive (Lot 4291)
Zoning: PR, Planned Residence District
Request: Approval of Variance to Sub-Area A Section B(2)(a) Development Standards of the Golf

Village Zoning Plan Reducing the Required Front Yard Setback from 25 feet to 24.3 feet
Ed Cooper swore in David Krock, David Betz, and Shawn Leininger to speak on this issue.

David Betz, Director of Development, reviewed that when this development was surveyed and the design was
completed, a control point was missed and a house was built in the setback. He said that Staff has prepared a
Memorandum for Record addressing this issue (Exhibit, Krock). He said that approving this variance will allow
the homeowner to close on this house without making a substantial change to the building itself. He said that
approving this variance to the Golf Village zoning plan would not be varying the City’s code, but rather the
Township’s as it is under the City’s jurisdiction with this development.

David Krock, 279 North State Street, said that he represents the engineering firm that designed this subdivision.
He agreed that a mistake was made in the surveying that set the pins off. Of the five houses under construction,
this is the only one that is affected.

Chairman Cooper asked if the concern is about one corner of the house. Mr. Krock said that the setback is a
problem on the two front corners of the garage.

Chairman Cooper opened this item to public comment. Hearing none, he closed the public comment session.

MOTION: Mr. Ireland moved to approve the variance to Sub-Area A Section B (2) (a). Chairman
Cooper seconded the motion. The motion was approved. Yes: Cooper, Hiles, Ireland.

APPEAL (Continued from November 20, 2002 meeting)

Appellant: Robert and Suzanne George
335 Whetstone Drive West
Location: 340 Olenview Circle East
Zoning: PR, Planned Residence District
Request: Appeal the Issuance of a Zoning Certificate for a Fence

by the Zoning Administrator Pursuant to Section 1127.03
Chairman Cooper swore in Staff, the applicants, the attorneys for the property owners, the property owners, and
other interested parties. He noted that the meeting order has been revised slightly and that Staff will first “lay the
groundwork” on this appeal.

David Betz, Director of Development, reviewed the original Staff Report presented at the November 20, 2002
meeting (Exhibit 1). He reviewed the plot plan and fence detail drawing that was part of the original permit
(Exhibit 2). He presented additional testimony for this evening’s meeting (Exhibit 3, including sub-exhibits ZA1-
ZA4).

Chairman Cooper asked if the property owner is present and whether she is represented by Council. Kirk Wall,



Board of Zoning Appeals 12/18/02 2

attorney for Sheryl Kraner of 340 Whetstone Drive, identified himself. Chairman Cooper asked for Mr. George to
restate his case since one member of the Board this evening was not present at the last meeting.

Robert George, Appellant, said that he is not represented by counsel. He said that he is sensitive about fence
issues because he has experienced a similar problem at a previous home. He said that the former owner of this
home, who happened to be a village council member, assured him that fences are not allowed without review and
approval by adjacent property owners within 200 feet of the proposed fence. He said that when this fence was
under construction, he called Dan Wiencek, also a Council member, who stated that “that fence wasn't allowed.”
He said that Mr. Wiencek said “there was no way that the homeowner...could have got a permit for that fence.”
He said the fence construction was approved on October 4th. By the time construction began on the 18th, he
had learned that he only had two days left to appeal. He said he filed an appeal on the last day possible, and the
fence construction was stopped before the scalloping had been put on. He said to him, that is wrong. He said the
Staff Report says that no one has appealed the number of fences previously permitted and approved, but he
thinks that is because people only have 20 days to appeal, they don’'t know when the fences are approved, and it
costs $250 to make an appeal. Mr. George said that paragraph 1145.34 of the Powell Zoning Code says that an
ornamental fence can be constructed without neighbor's approval. He expressed frustration regarding going
through this appeal again. Mr. Ireland said that he has read through the minutes several times, and therefore Mr.
George can touch on the salient aspects at this time. Mr. George agreed that the minutes are very accurate, and
continued to “hit on the high points” of his case.

Mr. George summarized that to him, this fence doesn’'t meet the definition of an ornamental fence. He presented
a photograph of the fence (Exhibit, George 6). He said that at the last meeting, he misstated that this fence
encloses about ¥ of an acre, and he'd like to clarify that ¥2 of an acre is correct. He identified the transparency
prepared by Staff (Exhibit, George 7). He reviewed the location where he took the photograph in Exhibit 6 from
his driveway (Exhibit, George 8). He said that in his opinion, and “in the opinion of everyone else that was asked,
if they believe...in a heartbeat (the fence) is privacy” rather than ornamental.

Mr. George said that the Staff Report says this fence doesn’t meet the requirements of a privacy fence. He said
that the description is complicated. He reviewed the Zoning Code definition of a solid fence or wall: “those
structures which have less than 50% free and open space.” He said this fence has less than 50% free and open
space, and therefore, it is a solid fence. He said a solid fence is a privacy fence. He noted that the introduction of
the Zoning Code Section 1145.34 has a purpose statement for fence regulations that says “It is the purpose of
this section to promote and protect the public health, welfare and safety by Staff's regulations controlling the use
of fences, walls, shrubberies, and hedges, assuring residents of residential areas privacy and personal preference
in landscape design within their own properties subject to and with due consideration of the environment of
neighbors, the appearance of the community as a whole, and safety of the pubic...” He said it is his view that that
purpose has not been met with the approval of this fence. He said he understands there was no site survey made
at the time the permit was considered. He said if a representative of the Zoning Department had reviewed the
property, they would have seen the impact this fence would have on his yard.

Mr. George reviewed the photographs again and noted the following:

There is a lack of 50% air space as required by the code. This meets the definition of a solid fence.

The length is over 400 feet long and encloses about %2 of an acre.

Provides a barrier for privacy, and is therefore a privacy fence.

This structure impacts the character and appearance of the neighborhood and therefore doesn’t meet the
requirement of the purpose statement he previously referenced. He said that the 9 adjoining, once open
yards now have a 5 foot fence in the middle.

Mr. George referred to Staff's testimony (Exhibit 3) and said that on page 5, the previous owner of his home is
stating that he has problems with the obstruction of fences. He said that his wife reminded him that the minutes in
that testimony are related to the issuance of variances, not approval without proper notification. He said had a
variance been requested, this may have ended differently.

Mr. George called Dan Wiencek, 351 Whetstone Drive, as a witness. He said that Mr. Wiencek lives two doors
down. He said he knew Mr. Wiencek is a City Council member, and he contacted him when the fence was being
installed. He asked Mr. Wiencek if it is correct that he said the fence shouldn’t have been put up, and that a
permit could not have been issued. Mr. Wiencek said that is correct. Mr. George said that everyone seems to



Board of Zoning Appeals 12/18/02 3

believe that this is a privacy fence, and he and 13 other residents should have been notified of its impending
construction. He said they have the right to approve such a fence. He said his right to due process has been
denied and he asked that the fence be removed.

Chairman Cooper said that is different than what the Board is here for. He said the Board is here to interpret
Staff's 50% interpretation. He said that does not necessarily mean the fence may be removed in any event. It
either complies or it doesn’t, but wouldn’t necessarily be removed.

Suzanne George said that it was her understanding when she filed the appeal that the result would be the
removal of the fence. She said they weren't just appealing the 50% open space requirement. Shawn Leininger,
Development Planner, said that he spoke with both Mr. George and Ms. George on the phone and in person, and
the initial discussion was whether fences are permitted. He said he clearly explained to the Georges that fences
are allowed in Powell and in Olentangy Ridge subdivision. He said they then discussed 50% free and open
requirement. That led into a discussion of whether the interpretation of the Zoning Administrator can be
appealed. He said at the time of the application, it was explained that the appeal was related to the 50% free and
open requirement. He said that fences are permitted in Powell. Mr. George said that they had lengthy
discussions with Staff and the City Manager. He said that the City Manager knew that his concern was more
about the lack of notification and the due process than the 50% open space. He said that this is a privacy fence,
and he should have had the opportunity to review it.

Chairman Cooper gave Kirk Wall, attorney for Sheryl Kraner, property owner, the opportunity to question Mr.
George.

Mr. Wall asked if Mr. George is seeking a new regulation that there are no fences in Powell. Mr. George said he
is not. Mr. Wall asked Mr. George if he is aware that there are several fences in his neighborhood. Mr. George
said that he is, and that the fences are hideous. Mr. Wall asked if Mr. George agrees that those fences in his
neighborhood are ornamental, with 4” board and 2" spaces. Mr. George said that some are and some are not.
Mr. Wall asked if Mr. George is expecting a change to a 4” space between the 4” boards. Mr. George said he is
trying to receive his due process.

Mr. Wall asked if this fence is on Mr. George’s property. Mr. George said it is not to his knowledge. Mr. Wall
asked if there are any drainage problems created by the fence. Mr. George said that he doesn’t know, but the
fence is not 3” above the ground. Mr. Wall asked if there has been any trespass on his property by additional
drainage. Mr. George said there is none that he is aware of. Mr. Wall asked if Mr. George has any evidence to
offer that he has sustained a financial injury due to this fence. Mr. George said that he will not know until he has
his home assessed. Mr. Wall asked if he would agree that at this point, no injury has been sustained. Mr.
George said that the impact has yet to be determined because it was installed past the time of year that he
spends a lot of time in his yard. He said that the quality of his life has been damaged because he can see it out
the window from his kitchen, his bedroom, his family room, his patio. He said he “can’t escape it.” Mr. Wall said
he understands that Mr. George doesn't like fences, but that is a different issue. He asked, if the fence is
changed from 4” board and 2” space to 4” board and 4” space, whether his quality of life would be the same. Mr.
George said that is twisting it around, but he would have to answer yes. Mr. Wall asked if Mr. George has any
reason to doubt that the 99 other permits have been granted since 1996 that have a 4" board and 2" space. Mr.
George said he has no reason to suspect whether it is true, either. Mr. Wall asked if Mr. George has any
evidence to say it's not true. Mr. George said he does not. But his own experience proves that such fences exist
because neighbors don't have a chance to speak their peace on them before they were installed. Or, they didn’t
feel like spending $250 to make the appeal. Or they didn't have access to the Code that says 50%. Mr. Wall
asked again whether Mr. George has any evidence to suggest that what Mr. Betz says is untrue. Mr. George said
he has “visual evidence...of different varieties of different fences,” but he has nothing to submit to the board. Mr.
Wall had no additional questions for Mr. George and no questions for Mr. Wiencek.

Chairman Cooper asked if the Board has any questions of Mr. George or Mr. Wiencek. They did not. Chairman
Cooper asked if Staff has anything to add. Mr. Betz said that if the fence built does not comply with the ordinance
as interpreted by Staff, it will have to comply once the appeal is decided. He said that construction on the fence
has been halted and Staff has not had the opportunity to inspect the finished product due to the fact that it is not
finished.



Board of Zoning Appeals 12/18/02 4

Mr. Ireland said that the way he reads this is that the Board must determine how ornamental and privacy fences
are defined. He asked Staff to elaborate more on the air flow and the light being perpendicular to its vertical
plane. Mr. Betz reviewed the fence detail drawing. He reviewed that there is a vertical plane, and light must be
able to go through the perpendicular line to the fence. He said that a picket fence lets light through. A stockade
privacy fence, as defined in the code, consists of a row of large slats or posts created to deflect perpendicular
light. He said that any open fence is not a stockade-privacy fence. An ornamental fence has not less than 50%
free and open space, and the way Staff has interpreted that is that if there is a 4” board, there is a 2” opening in
between.

Chairman Cooper asked if a 2" space and a 4” board wouldn’t represent 33% open space. Mr. Betz said that
since 1992, Staff has interpreted it with 4” boards and 2” spaces. Many permits have been issued, including in
this neighborhood. He said perimeter fences are permitted. Staff has interpreted that 50% is half the width of the
board. 50% is the opening. Mr. Ireland asked about the requirement that it provide air but not deflect light. Mr.
Betz drew a picture of a board-on-board fence which allows air in diagonally but deflects light. He said such a
fence is determined to be a privacy fence. Chairman Cooper invited Mr. Wall to pose questions to staff.

Mr. Wall asked if Mr. Betz agrees that reasonable minds can have different opinions on the interpretation of the
code. He said this regulation is a little ambiguous. Mr. Betz said that Staff has interpreted it that the space
should be half the picket. Mr. Wall said that Staff could go with Mr. George’s interpretation and count the post as
blockade space and have a 4” board and a 6” space, depending on how one draws the box. Mr. Betz agreed that
it depends on how the box is drawn. Mr. Wall asked if the depth of the scallop could be an arc taken out and
counted toward the open space. Mr. Betz said it could be interpreted that way. Mr. Wall asked if it is correct that
Mr. Betz's job is to interpret all of the Zoning Code regulations. Mr. Betz said he is responsible for the first
interpretation. Mr. Wall said that this interpretation has been applied consistently. Mr. Betz said it has. Mr. Wall
asked if Ms. Kraner's fence permit was consistent with the way the code has been interpreted in the past and
been properly issued. Mr. Betz said it has. Mr. Wall asked if any of Mr. George’s questions regarding considering
the environment, the impact, and staff making a site impact to review the length are regulations that were not met.
Mr. Betz said that Staff does not typically go to every site for which they receive zoning applications. Staff relies
on the submittals given by the applicant, and if they need more information, they may go to the site. He said that
when the code states a purpose, it means that there is a purpose to the regulations that are there, and then the
regulations are there to govern. Mr. Wall asked if that preamble section was passed by the City of Powell. Mr.
Betz said it is part of the Zoning Ordinance. Mr. Wall asked if the impact on the community and public health is a
determination by the City of Powell. Mr. Betz said it is. Mr. Wall asked if that determination is already made
because an open and ornamental fence is an allowed and permitted use. Mr. Betz said that is correct. Mr. Wall
asked if it is correct that Staff then does not have to go back and make that consideration on a case by case basis
because the City has already made that decision. Mr. Betz said that is correct. Mr. Wall asked if it is correct that
Staff must issue the permit based on the drawing. Mr. Betz said it is. Mr. Wall asked if he followed the correct
procedure in this instance. Mr. Betz said he did.

Mr. Wall asked if there is any limitation on length of fencing in the City. Mr. Betz said there is not. Mr. Wall
asked, if there is enough property, could a fence run for a mile. Mr. Betz said if the property was that long, yes.
Mr. Wall asked if it is up to the property owner how long of a fence they can build as long as they own the
property. Mr. Betz said that is correct, barring any easements that might be on the property. Mr. Wall asked if
there is any requirement that, for example, a fence must be a half an acre or less. Mr. Betz said there is not. Mr.
Wall had no more questions for Mr. Betz.

Ken Molnar, Director of Law, asked if Mr. Wall has any questions for Ms. George. Mr. Wall said he did not, but he
has a presentation he'd like to make. He presented the board with the property owner’s evidence (Exhibit Kraner
1-7). Mr. Ireland asked about the location of the property owners who signed off on the fence. Mr. Wall said that
he would like to withdraw Exhibits 3 and 4.

Mr. Wall reviewed that the standard for appeal outlined in the City Zoning Code is that an appeal may be taken by
“any person who has been aggrieved by the decision of the Zoning Administrator.” He said that the definition of
aggrieved in both a legal dictionary and case law indicates that a party must be injured. He said there must be an
impingement on individual's rights. He said that Mr. George hasn't established that he has such standing to be
before the Board at this time. He said that this is not a variance, or a change in zoning regulations. Mr. George
must show a specific injury to himself. He said that there has been no reduction in property value, the fence is not



Board of Zoning Appeals 12/18/02 5

on Mr. George's property, and there has been no trespass onto Mr. George's property. Without injury, Mr.
George has no standing to even bring this appeal. Mr. Wall said that his appeal should be dismissed before the
Board even gets to the merits. He cited an affidavit from Timothy Geiger indicating that deductions aren’t made
from the value of a property because of a fence. (Exhibit, Kraner, 5). He said that is a critical point, particularly
considering the arguments regarding due process. He said that due process is only given when rights have been
violated. If one hasn't sustained an injury, the City owes no process. He said that the zoning regulation for
appeals is defined in Section 1127.03 a. He said a fence is a permitted use, and Mr. George has no standing to
object.

Mr. Wall reviewed the legal definition of an “aggrieved person.” He noted case law that applies: Shumaker v. 1%
National Bank, 66 Ohio St. 3 304; Midwest Fireworks Manufacturing Company vs. Deerfield 91 Ohio St. 3d 174;
and Zellnick vs. Troy City Council, 85 Ohio Misc. 2d 67". He said the sum and substance of those cases is that
there must be an injury. He said that if there is a variance case, there is a presumption of an injury; therefore it is
usually easy to identify. Cases of permitted uses are rarely challenged. He moved to dismiss Mr. George’s
appeal on that basis alone. Chairman Cooper asked if it is possible that because of the interpretation of what a
privacy or stockade fence is, and the fact that such a fence is not allowed within the City without permission from
homeowners within 200 feet, whether it is argued that this interpretation was incorrect, and Mr. George would be
an aggrieved party. Mr. Wall said he doesn’t think that is the case. He said that this issue is also being
addressed in the wrong forum. Mr. George has made it clear that he wants no fence. He wants to change the
regulation. He doesn’t want to see a fence with a 4” gap. He said that the Board is present in a quasi-judicial
capacity which requires the City to rely on competent evidence, not just public comment. He said that Mr.
George’s opinion is completely irrelevant. He said Mr. George’s burden of proof is to show that the interpretation
is arbitrary, unreasonable, and beyond his authority. He said that is a huge burden and there is no way he can
make it in this case, because reasonable minds can differ on interpretation. He said the proper forum is to
petition the City of Powell to change their zoning regulations, to get rid of fences or require a 4” gap between
boards.

Mr. Wall questioned what happens if Mr. George wins his case. If there is a legislative act that changes the
zoning regulations, those who currently have fences that would not comply could be “grand-fathered.” If this is
done by judicial fiat, everyone in the City of Powell would have to change their fence. He said there is no
estoppel against the Zoning Administrator if he makes an incorrect decision in applying the zoning regulations.
He said this is all the more reason to have to think in procedural terms. This is the wrong place to discuss this.
Mr. Wall said that the Ohio Revised Code is very clear that the Zoning Code must have the most liberal
interpretation for a permitted use. He said that the currently-used interpretation is reasonable. He said if the Board
finds that the Zoning Certificate is filed in compliance with Powell's history of granting Zoning Certificates, the
board has no choice but to dismiss Mr. George's claim.

Chairman Cooper asked if Mr. George has questions of Mr. Wall. Mr. George said he believes that he has shown
harm. He had no questions of Mr. Wall or Staff. Ms. George asked to question Mr. Betz. She asked if Mr. Betz
signed the fence permit. Mr. Betz said he did. Ms. George asked how the fence requirements were interpreted
prior to 1992. Mr. Betz said he doesn’t know. He came up with his own interpretation after being hired.

Pete Rogers, Lee’s Fencing, said that you could build 6’ privacy fences in Powell with no spaces between the
boards. He said that when this fence is complete, it will be scalloped and only posts the posts will be 5 foot high.
Ms. George disagreed with Mr. Rogers that such fences were permitted because their deed restrictions had a
50% requirement.

Ms. George asked if it is correct that Mr. Betz doesn’t know the procedure before 1992 because he wasn't here.
Mr. Betz said it is. Ms. George asked if Mr. Betz's definition is that an ornamental fence is any fence that has
open space that allows light to pass through. Mr. Betz said the question was about stockade/privacy fences,
which consist of a series of slats at an angel to provide air but to deflect light. He said that if a fence is
determined not to be a stockade/privacy fence, then you move on to the next types, solid fence, or
open/ornamental fences. He read from the code that an open/ornamental fence identified on page 1 of Exhibit 1.
Ms. George asked how Mr. Betz defines what a fence that allows light to pass through is. Mr. Betz said it would
only be an ornamental fence if it has 50% or more open space. If it has less than 50%, it would be considered a
solid fence. He said that a solid fence is that which has less than 50% free and open space. He said a privacy
fence is a different definition. Ms. George asked if a solid fence is permitted by the Zoning Code without a



Board of Zoning Appeals 12/18/02 6

variance. Mr. Betz said that permitted fences include open ornamental fences; shrubbery fences, or hedges,
privacy fences not more than 5 feet in height measured from grade providing written permission is obtained from
adjacent owners and lots within 200 feet, fences or walls with wood or masonry construction not more than 6 feet
height measured from grade of patio or deck. He said those are generally the permitted fences. Ms. George
asked if it is correct that a solid fence is not permitted. Mr. Betz said it is not if it has less than 50% open space.
Ms. George said that according to her interpretation, this fence has clearly less than 50% open space, so a
variance should have been obtained, which means they would have been notified. She said the fence should
never have gone up, and that is why they are saying it should come down. She said they are not saying that
there is no room for compromise, but that their due process wasn’t met because their interpretation is that this is a
solid privacy fence and a permit should never have been issued. She said that they have as much right to
enjoyment of their property as Ms. Kraner does. She said they don’'t have anything personal against Ms. Kraner
and noted that in the three years they have been neighbors, they have never met.

Mr. Wall asked Mr. Rogers if he installed this fence. Mr. Rogers said he did. Mr. Wall asked how long he has
been installing fences in Powell. Mr. Rogers said he has been in the Central Ohio area for 28 years. Mr. Wall
asked if he has installed fences similar to this in other areas in Powell. Mr. Rogers said he has. He said they
installed one in the same subdivision two months ago without problems or objections. Mr. Wall asked if in his
experience, this is ornamental. Mr. Rogers said it is. He said this interpretation of the code is consistent. He
said that too wide of a gap between slats can cause a safety hazard. He said that most safety codes require a
space of less than 4" for safety purposes. He said that a board with a large gap would split if hit by a soccer ball
with such spacing, and too wide of a gap won't contain pets in a yard. He said that if the code were interpreted
for 4” slats and 4" gaps, no fences would be practical. Mr. Wall asked Mr. Rogers to estimate how many 4"
boards, 2” space fences he has installed in Powell. Mr. Rogers estimated 40-50.

Mr. Hiles asked if it is correct that there is a final inspection of all completed fences by Staff. Mr. Betz said that
there is. Mr. Wall said he has heard that there are concerns that some of the spaces don't meet the 2-inch
requirement, and the property owner will comply with that requirement after the fence is inspected. He said that
the safety concerns certainly justify the decision Mr. Betz has made regarding interpreting the code. He added
that they would like to incorporate any comments Jack Reynolds, attorney for the property owner in the next case,
may have regarding their case, as it is very similar.

Chairman Cooper asked if there is any additional public comment.

Mr. Rogers said that during installation, they do put fences together with tight gaps so that when the cedar dries
out and sun hits it, it will shrink.

Bill Nolan, appellant in the next case, said that he has comments on the code section that he would like to make
before the board rules on Mr. George’s. Chairman Cooper said he is uncertain whether the board will rule this
evening, as it has 30 days to make a decision.

Chairman Cooper asked if Mr. George has any other questions. Mr. George asked how many subdivisions are
there in Powell. Mr. Betz said there are 15-20. Mr. George asked how many of those have very strict restrictions
on fencing, such as in Ashmoore. Mr. Betz said that deed restrictions prohibit property owners in Ashmoore,
Lakes of Powell, and Grandshire from building fences. Mr. George said that his subdivision “butts up against
Ashmoore.” Mr. George said that one of the reasons the code is written as it is and is subject to interpretation is
to restrict the use of fences. He said the idea was “not to have fences all over the place.” He said that is starting
to happen in Olentangy Ridge. He said while other subdivisions seem to have fairly restrictive rules, the policy in
Olentangy Ridge is “anything goes.” He said a walk through his neighborhood will show fences of sizes between
4-6 feet. He reiterated that he thinks Staff's interpretation of the 50% open space is still incorrect.

Mr. Molnar reviewed the exhibits as outlined in the Exhibit list. There were no objections to the exhibits by Mr.
Wall, Mr. George, or Staff. Chairman Cooper closed the public comment session on this item and suggested a 5
minute recess after which, the second case will be heard.



Board of Zoning Appeals 12/18/02 7

APPEAL
Appellant: Bill Nolan
175 Cressingham Lane

Location: 126 Cressingham Lane
Zoning: PR, Planned Residence District
Request: Appeal the Issuance of a Zoning Certificate for a Fence by the Zoning Administrator

Pursuant to Section 1127.03
Chairman Cooper swore in Staff, the applicants, the attorneys for the property owners, the property owners, and
other interested parties.

David Betz, Director of Development, gave his Staff Report on this issue (Exhibit 1). He identified the map and
the location of the subject property (Exhibit 4). He reviewed the plot plan and the description of fence from the
original permit application. (Exhibit 5) Mr. Betz said that the property owner also received the necessary
approval from their homeowners’ association for this plan. He reviewed staff's interpretation of the open space
requirement for a fence such as this and referred again to his testimony which he gave for the previous
application (Exhibit 3).

Bill Nolan, Appellant, asked about the letter he submitted at the first consideration of this issue. Dawn Nauman,
Clerk to the Board, said she has that listed as Exhibit, Nolan-1. Mr. Nolan said that it is not his desire to turn this
into a “neighborhood thing.” He said that as much as he thinks this is right and his neighbor thinks he is right, he
intends to monitor the tone of this hearing. He said that he hopes the board does not make their decision without
first reviewing the variety of legal issues that have been presented to them. He said he is surprised that Mr. Wall
would refer to extensive legal authority without submitting the cases to the board for their review. He said he
would like to see the cases to which Mr. Wall referred. He said that if the procedural positions Mr. Wall described
are true, then a large part of the City’s administrative practice is out the window. He said that would mean that if
Mr. Betz interprets the code, no one can argue with that interpretation unless they can prove financial damage to
their property.

Mr. Nolan said that he believes this is a simpler issue and the discussion should be more narrow than that which
went on for the previous case. He said that the issue is not whether invisible fences work, whether “the fence
guy” thinks its standard, can dogs escape, etc. He said he thinks the question is whether this is an ornamental
fence as defined in the code. He said there are three requirements in the definition for such a fence, and the
proper relief to this issue would be making the fence comply or removing it. He said that the requirements are as
follows:

1. That it be wood or metal. Mr. Nolan said it meets this requirement, as it is wood.

2. That it be constructed for beauty or decorative effect. Mr. Nolan recognized that it is difficult to make a
subjective determination as to what is beautiful or not. While he is convinced this is not beautiful, neighbors might
think it is. However, he thinks it is clear that it was not constructed for beauty, but rather to keep in dogs. He said
that if the Board determines the fence was constructed for that purpose, they can require that it be removed.

3. That not less than 50% is free and open space. Mr. Nolan said that Mr. Wall used the term reasonable or
unreasonable in determining interpretation of the code. Mr. Nolan said that while has great respect for Mr. Betz, it
is patently unreasonable to look at a fence that is two-thirds solid surface and say it has 50% open space. He
said they can discuss the effecting of scalloping and other details, but it is not reasonable to count every open
space twice. He said he thinks Mr. Betz’s interpretation reads 33% open space as meeting the 50% open space
requirement.

Mr. Nolan referred to Mr. Betz's testimony (Exhibit 3) which he submitted to support his position. He said that that
sub-exhibit ZA2 is a March 11, 1993 request for a variance to allow construction of a fence with less than 50%
open space. He said that is not an application similar to that being considered now. He said that sub-exhibit ZA3
is from September 10, 1996, and is an application to allow a board-on-board privacy fence. He said the
highlighted language on page 2 does explain how the village interprets 50%, but the variance request was denied.
Not because they didn’t meet the 50%, but for a variety of other reasons, and therefore it is not a good proposition
to prove that the board has previously approved this interpretation. Mr. Nolan referred to sub-exhibit ZA4 which
related to a request for a variance to allow a fence in a utility easement. He said that request had nothing to do
with the 50% requirement that the code requires. He said that the request was also denied. He said he doesn't



Board of Zoning Appeals 12/18/02 8

think these exhibits represent proof that the BZA has approved this interpretation of 50% open space. Mr. Nolan
summarized by submitting that the fence doesn’t meet the 50% requirement under any reasonable interpretation,
the fence wasn'’t constructed for beauty or decorative effect, and he asked that the Board also study his letter of
November 20 (Exhibit Nolan-1). Mr. Nolan said he has no witnesses to call.

Jack Reynolds, Attorney for the Property Owner, Steven McCarty, presented a series of exhibits to the Board
(Exhibit, McCarty 1-12). He said that they are present this evening pleading the City’'s case. He said that Mr.
McCarty secured a fence permit from the City. He submitted the proper documentation, and met all the
requirements in terms of setbacks, height, spacing requirements, materials, and installation for beautification
purposes. He said they are present to support Staff's interpretation of Section 1145.34. He said that the Board is
a panel of judges in this proceeding, and they must weigh the evidence presented. He said he did submit a court
case (Exhibit, McCarty-10) that outlines that the Board is acting as a panel of judges. He concurred with Mr.
Wall's discussion about standing. He said although Mr. Nolan feels anyone in a community should be able to
guestion Mr. Betz's interpretation, the code itself (Exhibit, McCarty-2) states that “an administrative appeal must
be taken by a person aggrieved by any officer or bureau of the legislative authority affected by the decision.” He
reviewed the legal definition that indicates who an aggrieved party is (Exhibit, McCarty-3). He said that in order
to meet that definition, Mr. Nolan needs to prove how he was damaged. He said Mr. George lives next door to
the Kraners. He identified the site plan of Chambers Glen (Exhibit, McCarty-4). He identified the circles around
Mr. McCarty’s property. He said the first represents the 200 foot radius of property owners who would need to
sign off on installation of a solid fence, if that is the type that Mr. McCarty was going to install. The second circle
represents 250 feet, and includes those property owners who received notice of this evening’s hearing. He
identified the location of Mr. Nolan’s house in green, approximately 310 feet away from Mr. McCarty’s property.
He said he is concerned about an individual who probably doesn't like the way fence looks, who hasn't been
harmed or effected in any way, but has taken it upon himself maybe as a representative of the neighbors, to
appeal Mr. Betz's interpretation.

Mr. Reynolds reviewed an affidavit from a real estate appraiser indicating that the fence isn't a detriment to the
community (Exhibit, McCarty-5). He said it is hard to rationalize how Mr. Nolan is aggrieved. He said Mr. Nolan
is looking for a legislative remedy for an administrative process. He said he has outlined what standing is
required for an aggrieved party. He said that Mr. Nolan must prove that he is aggrieved. He said he made no
statements indicating harm other than the fact that he didn’t think the interpretation is correct. He said he doesn't
think he should be able to bring this forward, and he asked the Board to dismiss. He said that Mr. Nolan must
carry the burden of proof of that the decisions of the zoning administrator are unreasonable, arbitrary, or in excess
of authority (Exhibit, McCarty-7). Mr. Reynolds said that he doesn'’t think Mr. Betz's interpretation was any of
those things. He said he would like to include comments from the previous application that discuss the rational
reason for the fence standard, which are safety, the ability to keep animals and children in and out, and “the
safety issue that was discussed earlier.” He said that the property owner was required to get support of the
Chambers Glen Homeowners’ Association when they applied for their fence permit, and a letter supporting the
installation was enclosed, as well as the Declaration and Covenants for Chambers Glen, which identify that such
a fence is permitted (Exhibit, McCarty-8-9). Mr. Reynolds identified a picture of the fence (Exhibit, McCarty-12).
He said that there is a standard in Powell that has been established and upheld over the last 10 years. He said
this may be the first appeal regarding the code before this body. Mr. Reynolds said that he thinks this is an
administrative decision to be decided by Council rather than by the Board of Zoning Appeals. He referred to the
99 fence permits issued in the City in the last 10 years. He agreed with Mr. Wall that there is no equitable
estoppel available for the municipality. If the Board finds that Mr. Betz's interpretation is incorrect, there is nothing
to stop the city from enforcing the new interpretation on all of those folks who have already constructed their
fences. Ifitis illegal in both instances, it is also illegal for the other fences throughout the City and the decision
could effect people who are not present this evening. He said that Mr. McCarty followed the rules and is now
having to spend money because “a gentleman who lives down the street from him doesn’t like the fence.”

Mr. Reynolds then asked questions of Staff. He asked if there have been any previous appeals of Mr. Betz’'s
interpretation of 50% open space. Mr. Betz said that there have not. Mr. Reynolds asked if there have been any
comments from any other City officials regarding that interpretation. Mr. Betz said that since these applications
have been submitted, the Planning and Zoning Commission has determined that it is desirable to study the fence
regulations. Mr. Reynolds asked approximately how many permits are issued prior to 1996. He asked how
many have been issued each year. Mr. Betz estimated 10-15 per year. Mr. Reynolds asked how many
administrative appeals handle in a year's time. Mr. Betz estimated 1-2 appeals are filed. Mr. Reynolds asked if



Board of Zoning Appeals 12/18/02 9

there have been any requests for variances to the 50% open space requirement. Mr. Betz said there have. Mr.
Reynolds asked if that is based on Mr. Betz's current interpretation. Mr. Betz said it is, and it has been presented
to the board in that fashion.

Mr. Reynolds asked to call John Pickens, of Lannis Fence to testify. He asked how long Mr. Pickens has been
with Lannis Fence. Mr. Pickens said that he has been with them for 23 years, and Lannis has been in business
since 1963. Mr. Reynolds asked if he completed the work at 126 Cressingham, if he secured a permit, and
whether he has built other fences in Powell in the last 10 years and is therefore familiar with the code. Mr.
Pickens answered yes to all questions. Mr. Reynolds asked what the cost of the fence that was constructed was.
Mr. Pickens said it was about $5,300. He described the fence as a “standard 4 foot high scalloped fence. He
said a scalloped fence is a decorative fence, not a privacy fence because one can see right through and right
over. He said this type of fence may keep in a small dog, but it is definitely decorative.  Mr. Reynolds asked if
Mr. Pickens would consider this a stockade, solid, or privacy fence. Mr. Pickens said he would not, as privacy
fences are 6 foot high and solid. Mr. Pickens presented photos of stockade fences (Exhibit, McCarty — 13, top
two photos). Mr. Reynolds asked for an estimated cost to retrofit this fence to meet a revised interpretation of the
code. Mr. Pickens estimated it at about $4,000 because the fence will have to be taken apart, and many of the
wood will not be reusable once it is removed.

Chairman Cooper gave Mr. Nolan the opportunity to question Mr. Reynolds, Mr. Pickens, and Staff. Mr. Nolan
asked Mr. Betz if he is aware of any other occasions that the BZA rules on the 50% open space requirement. Mr.
Betz said they have never ruled on that issue, but his intent of the exhibits he presented was to note that they
have heard the interpretation before. Mr. Nolan asked if it is correct that the 99 fence permits issued since 1996
are all types of fences, not just those that meet the 50% space requirement. Mr. Nolan asked if Mr. Betz would
agree that not all 99 fences issued since 1996 would be impacted by a change in interpretation of the 50% open
space requirement. Mr. Betz said he would agree.

Chairman Cooper opened this item to public comment.

Don Chenoweth 125 Cressingham, said that he lives across the street and immediately to the west of this
property. He said he has great respect for his neighbors, and they live in a wonderful community. He identified
the adjoining property owners, and noted that several are members of the homeowners’ association or have
supported the fence in other ways. He said a letter was sent to the board from Mr. McCarty’s neighbors, the
McWilliams (Exhibit, McCarty-14). He said that Mr. McCarty did everything he was supposed to do. He got
approval from the homeowners and the City and he built the fence. He said the fence is fine, it's attractive, and
it fits with the house, and is aesthetically pleasing as possible. He said it is immaterial that there is a dog behind
the fence, but if there is, he is grateful for it because it will provide safety for the neighborhood children. He said
the fence is fine, and he has to look at it everyday.

Mr. Nolan had no questions for Mr. Chenowith.

Mr. Reynolds introduced a letter from the president of the Homeowners’ Association that approved the fence who
wanted to also express her support of the fence as a neighbor to Mr. McCarty (Exhibit, McCarty — 15).

Mr. Nolan pointed out for the record that Mr. Todd, whose home was pointed out on McCarty’s Exhibit 8, was not
one of the trustees that approved this fence. He agreed that Mr. McCarty tried to follow right procedures, but he
thinks his problem is the way the ordinance was interpreted. He asked to clarify that his position is not that
anyone in Powell has the right to challenge any decision. He said he can see this fence from his front door,
regardless of how far it is away. He said that he feels he is aggrieved and meets the meaning in the code, and it
is for the Board to decide if he is aggrieved rather than a law dictionary.

Mr. Reynolds said that the burden of proof is upon Mr. Nolan to present that this interpretation was unreasonable
or arbitrary. If he hasn’t proved that, the Board has to determine that the interpretation of the City is appropriate.

Mr. Molnar reviewed the Exhibits as identified on the Exhibit list (attached). There was no objection by the
appellants, attorneys, or applicants to any of those listed exhibits. Chairman Cooper closed the hearing to further
testimony or citizen comment. Mr. Molnar said the Board has 30 days to make a decision, or they can make a
decision this evening.



Board of Zoning Appeals 12/18/02 10

Mr. Ireland said he thinks the cases can be considered together. Mr. Hiles agreed. Chairman Cooper said that
he thinks that it is important to decide separately in case these cases “go further’ than this board, but he thinks the
decision of one will likely be the decision of the other.

Mr. Ireland said he thinks there is some ambiguity in this code. He said that the fence in this case is definitely not
a stockade or privacy fence, but at the same time, it is open to interpretation as to whether this is an open or
ornamental fence. He said that the only type of fence that has special qualifications in the Code is a privacy
fence. He said if it is determined that this is not a privacy fence, then those qualifications don’t apply. He said he
isn't sure if it is an ornamental fence, but he knows it is not a stockade or privacy fence as identified in the code.
Therefore, he wouldn’t approve the appeal.

Mr. Hiles said that what is an ornamental fence is open to interpretation, but he doesn't think this is a privacy or
stockade fence.

Chairman Cooper said that he thinks there is some problem with the language in the Code. He said it is open to
interpretation. He said his first look at the code was that 50% free and open space on the entire structure means
4 inch board and 4 inch space. He said that there was testimony today that one can’t have openings wider than
4" for handrails or decks, etc. because of safety concerns. If the Board were to use the reasoning that a 4” board
requires a 4” space then one couldn’t have a 6” board fence. He said that although he thinks there is a problem
with the way the code is written, he can’t honestly say it has been unreasonably or arbitrarily enforced. He said
he would also deny the appeal and encourage Staff to begin to straighten out the language. He told Mr. George
that there are plans to discuss revising the notification for fences that are installed in the City. Mr. Molnar agreed
there will be some discussion with the Planning and Zoning Commission.

Ms. George asked about the problems with the fence where it doesn’t meet Mr. Betz's interpretation. Chairman
Cooper said that is a matter for Staff to handle.

MOTION: Chairman Cooper moved to deny the appeal of Robert and Suzanne George for the
property located at 340 Olenview Circle East. Mr. Ireland seconded the motion. The motion was
approved, and the appeal denied. Yes: Cooper, Ireland, Hiles.

Chairman Cooper said that this is the same situation, regardless of whether Mr. Nolan is an aggrieved party, the
fence issue is the same.

MOTION: Chairman Cooper moved to deny the appeal of Bill Nolan for the property located at 126
Cressingham Lane. Mr. Ireland seconded the motion. The motion was approved, and the appeal denied.
Yes: Cooper, Ireland, Hiles.

Mr. Molnar said a written decision will be prepared and sent to all interested parties. Mr. Nolan asked for the
Board to put it on the record that the reasoning for his appeal is the same as the reasoning for the George’s
Appeal. Chairman Cooper agreed, but Mr. Molnar said a written decision will follow.

OTHER COMMISSION BUSINESS
An additional meeting was scheduled for January 7™ at 6:00 p.m.

DATE MINUTES APPROVED:

Ed Cooper Date
Chairman






MINUTES m 4

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
OCTOBER 16, 1997

Chairman Thomas Coffey called the meeting to order at 7:35 P.M. Other board members present were Kristi
Kouskouris, and Thomas S. Counts. Also present were David Betz, Director of Development, Dana Hitt,
Development Planner, Dawn Nauman, Clerk of Board of Zoning Appeals, and residents (Exhibit).

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chairman Coffey moved to adopt the minutes of September 3 and September 17. Thomas Counts seconded the motion.
The motion was unanimously approved.

APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE

Applicant: David and Connie Gallucci

Location: 921 Bovee Lane, Powell Place

Present Zoning: PR, Planned Residence District

Request: Approval for a Variance to Section 1145.33 (g) (1) of the Planning and Zoning Code

to allow a fence to be constructed within a utility easement.

Chairman Coffey swore in David and Connie Gallucci, David Betz, Dana Hitt, Doug Vogt, and David Gesell to testify at
this meeting, to declare and affirm their testimony in the public hearing to be the truth.

Mr. Betz stated that the applicant wants to build a fence within a 7 1/2 foot storm sewer easement on the east side, within a
15 foot storm sewer/sanitary sewer easement on the south side, and within a 10 foot sanitary easement on the west side of
their property. The applicant has submitted signatures from all residents within 250 feet signifying their approval of the
fence. Although a public hearing is not required, the residents and their neighbors were notified of this meeting.

Mr. Betz said that the applicant is proposing a five-foot high fence that would enclose the rear yard. The village engineer
requests that fences not encroach upon storm sewer easements to insure 24-hour access to inlets such as those located on
both rear corners of the property. Such storm inlets are inspected on a regular basis. The electric code requires three feet of
space around an electric utility box like the one on the property line to the west.

Mr. Betz said that the proposed fence drawing shows the use of six inch slats between which there will be two inches of
space. The Zoning Code requires all fences to consist of 50% open space, meaning the distance between the slats should be
three inches. Staff recommends that any approval of the fence variance be conditioned upon 1.) that the fence will not
encroach within any storm sewer easement (east and south side), 2.) that the fence be constructed a minimum 3 foot
distance from the utility box, and that 3.) the picket fence meet the 50% requirement.

Connie Gallucci, applicant, said that the 6-8 foot deep drainage grates on her property do not lock, and she and her husband
are concerned about the liability associated with them. Mrs. Gallucci said that she would be happy to “pull the fence in” if
the grates were locked. She said that she knows someone’s child is going to get “badly hurt or die” in the grate and then
she is going to be sued. She said that the fence will not interfere with drainage or access, and that she will install double
gates if requested. Any landscaping would be within the fence.

Ms. Gallucci said she has no problem with the fence being placed 3 feet from the electrical box because she does not want to
dig around the electric lines. Kristi Kouskouris asked if Mrs. Gallucci’s fence is the first to be put in her portion of the
neighborhood. Mrs. Gallucci said that it is, but that her neighbors are planning to install fences, pools and tennis courts.
The neighbors surrounding her have similar easements, and she would like to share a common fence with them rather
than having fences between which lies a 15 - 30 foot alley way. She said that she understands that if the utility company
needs access, the fence will be removed.

Ms. Gallucci asked that Mr. Betz not take personally that her husband raised his voice at him before the meeting,.
Dave Gallucci, applicant, said that if he had known that there were easements in the yard and that a fence could not be put

on them, he would not have bought the lot. He said there were always utility easements on the lots were he lived previously,
and fences were always allowed with the understanding that the fence would be removed if access was needed. He said that



BZA 10/16/97 ‘ PAGE 2

he was told that, as a homeowner, he is liable for the storm sewers. He said he suggested putting a fence around them, and
he was told that he could not. He said that he suggested that the sewers be locked and he was told that they could not be.
Mr. Gallucci said that he is being forced to be liable without the opportunity to protect himself,

Mr. Gallucci echoed his wife’s concerns regarding the creation of alleys around his property. He said he moved to Powell
because of its image, and that the alleys would not be aesthetically pleasing. He said he was told that fences are allowed in
the village before he bought his home, and he is now finding out about the specific regulations. Mr. Gallucci said that this
issue effects himself, his neighbors and those in other sections of Powell Place.

Doug Vogt. 142 Celler Court, said that whether or not this is approved, there should be some lock on the grates. He said
that secondly, a decision on this issue should include the entire area, because other neighbors have the same problem.

Peggy Guzzo, 151 Celler Court.* said that she would feel more comfortable if people were to fence their pets in because of
children in the neighborhood. She said that the pool also requires a fence. Her biggest concern is what type of fence is
used, and she thinks there are guidelines for that. She said she would prefer her neighbors use their whole yard so that an
alley is not created and the value of her neighbor’s home is not decreased, thereby decreasing the value of hers.

Dave Gazelle, 911 Bovee Lane, said that his children’s safety is his primary concern. He agreed with Mr. Vogt that the
whole community wants to have the right to protect their children, enclose pools, etc.

Ms. Guzzo said that she does not think allowing this variance will result in everyone erecting fences. She said that she does
not think the neighborhood will become segregated, but that those who want a fence will build one.

Mrs. Gallucci said that she agrees that the whole area should be “encompassed by this change” because everyone backs into
each other. She said that will prevent her neighbors from having to go through the same process.

M. Betz asked who told the Gallucci’s they could not install locks. Ms, Gallucci said that she thought it was Mr. Betz.
Mr. Betz said that it was not, and that these storm sewers were installed using guidelines considered all over the country as
the best engineering practices. There are storm inlets throughout Powell that are intended to prevent drainage problems
and flooding. He said that the Zoning Code prohibits fences within easements so that they may be accessed for maintenance.

Mr. Counts said that locks are an issue that needs to be addressed by the village engineer. Mr. Betz agreed.

Mr. Gallucci asked why his lot plan was approved. Mr. Betz said that this kind of storm sewer plan is not unusual, and that
the atlas of village storm sewers shows that this kind of design is normal.

Mrs. Gallucci said that she has been requesting a meeting with the village engineer since June. She said that she has “left
30 messages and he does not return her calls.”

Ms. Guzzo asked if Mr. Betz is saying that none of the other subdivisions have fences. Mr. Betz said that no one is not
allowing the Gallucci’s a fence outside the storm sewer casement. Ms. Guzzo asked if Mr. Betz is saying that there is no
other subdivision that has a fence within that type of easement. Mr. Betz said there are fences that were built before the
requirements were put in the Zoning Code, and there have been variances granted by this board for some cases in the past.

Mr. Gesell asked for the justification for such variances. Mr. Betz said that he would have to look at each case, because this
board takes each case at its merit.

Ms. Guzzo asked if there is a preference of the board what type of fence would be appropriate. Mr. Betz said that the fence
the Gallucci’s are proposing meets the village requirements except for the spacing in between the pickets. Mrs. Gallucci
said that it is the fence that the village requires in order for her to have a pool. Ms. Kouskouris asked if the pool is built.
Mr. Gallucci said that it is not, but he is planning ghead.

Ms. Guzzo said the Gallucci’s are saying they are willing to take the risk that they may have to remove the fence. She said
that not approving their request to accept this risk would not be in good judgment.



BZA 10/16/97 ) PAGE 3

Mr. Counts said that the Zoning Code requires fences to be outside easements. He said that the Village Council passed it
and decided that it was the best thing for this community. Any disagreements over the Zoning Code should be discussed
with the Council. Mr. Counts referred to the hardship rules that must be followed in granting a variance.

Mr. Counts asked if most lots in the village have so many casements. Mr. Betz referenced a map of the neighborhood
which showed lots having two to four easements. He said that easements are necessary for future access to utilities and
they provide access to the storm sewers for periodic inspections to make sure that they are not clogged with debris. Mrs.
Gallucci said that her fence might solve that problem if the water flows freely, and the debris is stopped at the fence level.

Mr. Counts expressed concern that fences could be placed on all public utilities in the village. This may result in the village
having to come through and remove every fence. Ms. Kouskouris said that in the past, the removal of the fence has always
been at the homeowner’s expense. She expressed concern that the homeowners were unaware of these restrictions. She
said that she appreciates Mr. Counts concerns, but that she also appreciates the residents’.

Mrs. Gallucci said that at her last home, she had utility easements in her yard and access was not a problem. Mr. Counts
asked if that was in the village. Mrs. Gallucci said it was in Hilliard, and asked why the village is different in that respect.
She said she moved to Powell because it is beautiful and it is not fair that she must have “alley-ways” in her yard.

Mr. Vogt asked if there will be a large enough alley for a vehicle. Mr. Betz said that the intent is to allow room to bring in
a pump truck.

Ms. Kouskouris asked if the Delaware County sanitary engineer would be requested to approve the fence. Mr. Betz said
that the electric, cable, and phone companies already have a list of requirement to approve a fence. The sanitary engineer
usually allows the fence because they do not need as much access.

Mr. Coffey said that he would still like to pursue the lock issue. He said it sounds as if nobody has told the Galluccis that
they cannot have a lock on the storm grates, and the board was led to believe that someone did,

Mr. Betz commented that the grate is partially on the neighbor's property. Mr. Gesell said that the shared fence would
straddle the grate and keep it from lifting. Mr. Betz said that it would keep it from lifting for staff as well, and he asked
that if this variance is approved, that a removable section of the fence be placed over the grate, and that the fence gate have
a latch that can be opened at any time.

Mr. Counts asked about the over land water routing path along the eastern property line. He asked if building the fence
would prohibit or divert the waters. Mr. Betz said that it could divert somewhat, but that there is a swale in between those
lots which will help. He said that if enough space is left underneath the fence (minimum of 3”), it will not divert it as
much.

Mr. Counts asked about a split-rail fence variance that was approved in Olentangy Ridge that involved a utility easement.
Ms. Kouskouris said that a split rail fence will not accommodate a pool. Mr. Counts said that he is trying to consider
previous variances. Mr. Betz said that for that variance, the Board did not allow the applicant to put the fence all the way to
the back, but rather 10 feet from the property line Ms. Kouskouris said that a similar variance in Bartholomew Run was
given to eliminate alleys. Mr. Betz said that was for placement across rather than along the easement.

Mrs. Gallucci asked if losing their home as a result of a lawsuit would be considered a hardship. Mr. Counts said that the
village’s rules indicate that a hardship is something unique to the property where by virtue of the physical conditions of the
land that the strict application of the rules enacted by the village, the property owner would not be able to use their land, He
said he sympathizes with the issue of having the removable grates, unfortunately, that is not for the Board’s consideration.

Mr. Coffey asked if the slats in the fence will be level with the ground. Mr. Betz said the zoning code requires three inches
off the ground. Mr. Coffey asked about materials. Mr. Gallucci said it will be treated wood.

Mr. Counts asked to get away from the issue of the storm sewer grates. He asked if the applicant would have put a fence
solely around the pool if the grates did not exist. Mr. Gallucci said that he would still put a fence around the lot. He said he
would never “give up” his yard.




BZA 10/16/97 PAGE 4

MOTION: Tom Coffey moved to deny the request for variance from Section 1145.33 (8) (1) of the Planning and
Zoning Code to allow a fence to be constructed within a utility easement. Tom Coffey seconded the motion.

Thomas Coffey Yes
Kristi Kouskouris No
Thomas Counts Yes

Mrs. Gallucci asked about her procedure for recourse. Mr. Counts said that the Gallucci’s may appeal. Mr. Betz said the
appeal is through the Delaware County Board of Common Pleas.

Ms. Guzzo said she thought the Board would grant this variance, and she asked for the board’s guidelines for a hardship.

Mr. Counts said that there are six guidelines that must be followed in order for the board to make a decision. He read the
guidelines from the Powell Zoning Code, Section 1127.06.

1. _The granting of the variance is in accord with the general purposes and intents of variances, and in accord with the
general purposes and intents of the regulations imposed by this Zoning Ordinance on the district in which it is located, and
- shall not be injurious to the area or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. Mr. Counts said he thinks that the lot
includes some factors which apply to this requirement, but that ultimately the decision must be made “in accord with the. ..
regulations imposed by this Zoning Ordinance.” The Zoning Ordinance says that fences are not permitted within easement
areas. He said he assumes that was enacted to provide ease of access for utility companies and the village staff, Mr. Counts
said that the Board is present to decide unique characteristics of the Gallucci’s land, and that the variance is not to be
detrimental to the general welfare. He said that what is good for the village must be considered.

2. _The granting of the variance will not permit the establishment or continuation as a legal use of any use which is not
otherwise permitted in the district, Mr. Counts said he does not think that is an issue in this case.

3._There exist unique conditions of land/or buildings on this specific site or a legal use of a property immediately adjacent
fo the property in question, that are not encountered anywhere else in the area under Powell Zoning, which are such that
the strict application of the provisions of this Zoning Ordinance would result in deprivation of all beneficial use of the
land. Mere loss of value, or reduced economic expectations, do not warrant a variance: deprivation of all value must be
conclusively proven. Mr. Gallucci commented that he will lose 10% of his value. Mr. Counts said that zoning exists so
that the public as 2 whole benefit, though it sometimes effects the rights of individuals. Mr. Counts expressed concern
about what would happen if everyone placed fences within easements. Mrs. Gallucci said that the board is not addressing
the issue singularly, and that it is not fair that she is “being punished.” Mr. Counts said that the village has a zoning
ordinance that says that fences are not permitted in easement areas.

4. The deprivation so suffered, legal proof of "hardship" suffered as a result of the Ordinance, has not been self-created
and cannot been self created and cannot be self-corrected. "Hardship” cannot be established on the basis of having
purchased the ground and/or buildings with or without knowledge of the restrictions, '

Mr. Counts said that one of the issues here is that the Gallucci’s have easements on three sides of their lot, and he thinks
that is somewhat unique compared to many properties, so this stipulation falls in favor of the applicant’s situation.

J. The variance sought is the minimum variance required to restore a value to the property in question and to provide for
a reasonable use of land and/or buildings. Mr. Counts said that the applicant can clearly build a fence around their pool
that would meet the requirements of the Zoning Code. Mr. Gallucci said it would look bad, and drop the value of his
property. Mr. Counts said the Board is not to be concerned about mere loss of value, according to the Zoning Code.

6. The variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property, substantially increase the
congestion in the public streets, increase the danger of fire, endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair
property values of the adjacent area. Mr. Counts said there are two issues here. One is the issue of openness, the other is
the issue of providing access to public utilities. Mr. Gallucci commented that the safety issue of the sewer grates should be
a concern. Mr. Counts said that the issue is, that if everyone put up fences in these utility areas, and then someone had to
go through and tear them all out, suddenly there are many road blocks. ‘

7. The variance will not confer on the application any special privilege that is denied by this regulation to other lands,
structures, or buildings in the same district. Mr. Counts said that the Board is in a situation that if this variance is granted,






